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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH,
Vendor #177195, by increasing the price limitation by $298,737 from $5,232,597 to $5,531,334 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) ftinds made available through
the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA) and from remaining regular program year funds,
both from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025.
There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The original contract was approved by
Govemor and Executive Council on September 20,2023, Item #90. 100% Federal Funds ■

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $298,737

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of
the program.
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This amendment adds additional funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY24) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on
September 30, 2025, making them available for the next winter heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully suj)m(tted,

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

AMENDMENT

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"State") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos
County, NH 03570 (hereinafter the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20, 2023, Item #90, the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by. the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $5,232,597 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of $5,531,334.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $5,232,597 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of$5,531,334.

C) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$382,522 and inserting for administrative costs $409,677.

D) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$4,661,475 and inserting for program costs $4,933,057.

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder

Grams: 2401NHLIEI: Award Date: 10/23/23 Contractor Initials:

CFDA: 93.568 Date:
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shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Encrs

Date:

red S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Date: (p|Dt\aH By:
[Name & Title of Person Authorized to Sign)

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

7/18/2024

Date: By:
Assistant Attorney General

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: ^

Title:

Grants: 240INHL1EI; Award Date: 10/23/23 Contractor Initials:
CFDA: 93.568 Date: U
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRl-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. I further certify' that all fees and documents required by the Secrctar>' of Stale's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0006652662

Ilk

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secreiar\' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of Ihe Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory) ■

1. 1 am a duly elected board chair of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _June 27th , 2023 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard CEO and or Randal! Pilotte CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc._ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other instruments,, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posiUon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind Ihe corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature o? Elated Officer
Name: Sandy wonzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



A.CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {UUtOOfYYTf)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PROOUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchesier

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

LIndsey Goodrich

(603)669-32,6 (603)64M331

ADc^ESS- '"3"ch-c®hs@crossa9ency.com
INSURER(S) APPORDINC COVERAGE NAIC 1

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Beriin NH 03570

INSURER B Granite Stale Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

T>

IN

C

E

IIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES Ctf INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DiCATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
<CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/OD/YYYYl
POLICY EXP

(MM/DO/YYYYl LIMITS

A

X COMMERCUL GENERAL LIABILrrV

E  1 X| OCCUR

PHPK2571941 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE J 1,000.000

I CLAIMS-MAC DALUCE TO RENTED
PREMISES lEa oeeumsnenl

,  100.000

MED EXP (Any one oereon) J 5.000

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY J 1,000.000
G£f

X

□

V AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY n jE^ Q LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE , 3.000.000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO , 3.000,000
Professional Liability S 1.000,000

A

AU1

X

OMOBILE LtABLITY
1

PHPK2571943 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea aecMrtntl 1 i 1.000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par oervon) s

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY damage
(Per acddeni) $

i

A X

UMBRELLA LIAB

' EXCESS LUB
X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB870544 07/01/2024 07/01/2025
EACH OCCURRENCE , 2.000,000

AGGREGATE J 2.000,000
OED 1 X] RETENTION $ lO-OOO | s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS*LIABlUrr

ANYPROPRlETORfl'ARTNER/EXeCUTTVe rTTl
OFFICERAIEMBER ExaUDEO? ^
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If ye*, daacdbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Mow

1

N/A HCHS20240000575 (3a.) NH 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

"V* FEF OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCDENT J 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000,000 •
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT { 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AMIOonal Rwnarfc* SclMdult, miy b* «n»c>)*d If mot* tpac* 1* r*Qulr*d)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

NH Department of Energy

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Fnjit St., Sle. 10
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord-

1

NH 03301

ACORO 25 (2016/03)
01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER ^ . TOO Aoctts: Rday NH
Oared S. Chicolne 0 G£:P05'23 ?n 2=1^ RCV l-SOO-735-2964

*T«L (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
ChrtstDph«rJ.Elm8.Jr. 1 f \ FAX No. 271-1526

websKe:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.«nefBy.nh.Qw
21 8. Fnit St, Suite 10

Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

September 20,2023

His Excellency, Governor Qiristopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION -

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH, in the amoimt of
$5,232,597 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 30,2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in FY 2024 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY 2024

02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $5,232,597

2) Further request authorization to advance Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
$66,941 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide
CAAs* implementation of several other federal assistance programs, and the infirastructure that is
already in place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely wiA the [)epartmcnt's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
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New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income
level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is $80,069 for a family of four. The
average FAP benefit during the last program year was 51,530. The program operates on an
October 1" to September 30'*' program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

R es pec t fu I)j<?u6bi i 11 ed,

N

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: Thu Bgreemcni and all of its atuchmenii shall become public upon submission (o Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified lo the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMCNT
The State of New Hampshire and theContraclor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDCNTinCATlON.

l.I Suie Agency NariK

Ocpanment of Ertcrgy

1.2 State Agency Address

21 S. Ffvh St.. Sic. 10. Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Conimcior Addre.u

30 Exchange Street. Berlin, NH 03370

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)7S2.7001

1.6 Account L/nil aitd Class

33540000-U74

1.7 Completion Date
September 30. 2025

I.S Price Limitation

S5.232.597

i .9 Conrracring OITicer for Slate Agei>cy
Joshua W. Elliott. Director, Policy aod Programs Divi.xion

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-6003

l.II Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Tide of Contractor Signatory
Randall Pilonc, CFO

1.13 ^te Agency 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chicoitx, CoinmissMner

l.lAyXppraval by ihe N.H. bcparirtVUftOTAdminitirotion, Division of Personnel (i/oppticohle)

if By- Direvtur, On:^.16 Ap^'^^^^^^^^^^i^eral (Form. Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
1.17 Approval by the Governor aod Executive Council (if applicable)

O&C hem number: C&C Meeting Date:

LIHEAPJ4 TCCAP

Award » 240iNHLIEA

CFDAIV9.1.56A
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identifted in block I.I ("State").
engages contractor idcniined in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or ule of goods, or both,
identified and more particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT 8
which is incorporated herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFKECrrVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provisioo of this Agreement to the contrary,
and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and ull
obligations ofthe panics hercunder, shall become effective on the date
the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval is required, in whkh case the Agreement shall
become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by tbe State
Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Efrcctivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to tbc Effcciivc
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective
Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, and in the
event that this Agreement does not become efTccrive, the Sutc shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services
performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

' specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwiihsunding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all
obligations of the State herctindcr, including, without limitation, the
continuance of payments liertunder, arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of (uods. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hcreunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated fVinds by any state or federal legislative or executive
ttction that reduces, climiootes or otherwise modifies the uppropriaiion
or availability of fttnding for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBfT B, in whole or in part, (he Slate shall
have the right to withhold payment until such fuods become available,
if ever, arKl shall have the rigbi to reduce or terminate the Scr\'ices
under this Agreement immediately upon ghnng the Contraaor notice
of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event fuivds in that Account are reduced

or uoQvaiitble.

5. contract PRKTyPRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment arc
identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
irKorporaied herein by reference.
3 J Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
and nolwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no evcot shall the
total of all paymcrils authorized, or actually tnade hcrcundcr, exceed
the Price Limitation set forth in block I.S. The payment by (he State
of the contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement
to the Coritracior for all expenses, of whatever ninire incurred by the
Contractor in the perfomunce hereof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor for tbe Services.
S.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any umounts otherwise
payable to the Conrractor under this Agreement those liquidated

amounts required or permirted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7<
or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contraclor
agrees (hat it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTR..\CTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orden
of federal, stole, county or municipal authorities which impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to.
civil rights and equal employment opportunity laws and the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace, Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, if (his Agreement is funded in any part by
monies of the United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all
federal executive orders, rules, regulations and sianites, and ̂ iih any
rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue
to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual property lows.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
di.icrimina(c against employees or applicants for employment because
of age. sex. sexual uricniation. race, color, marital status, physical or
racniol disability, religious crccd, national origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, arid will take affirmative action to prevent such
discriminatioQ. unless exempt by state or federal law. The Contractor
shall ensure any tubcontnictors comply with these nondiscrimination
requirements.
6.3 No payments or rransfcn of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or $hi|ll be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or eommcTcial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in exiorlion. kickbacks, or
other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Slates access
to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all rules,
regulations artd orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this AgreerrKni.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
pcnunoci engaged In the Services shall be qualified to perfomi the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to
do so under ell applicable laws.
7.2 Tbc Contracting Officer specified b block 1.9, or any successor,
shall be the State's pomt of contact pertaining to this Agreement.
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any otK or more of the following acu or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreunder ("Event of
Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform (he Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take
any one, or more, or all, of ibc following actions:

Page 2 of4
LIHEAP24 TCCAP

Award#240INHLIEA

CFDA#93.568

P37 Form

tninalsW



8.2.1 give ihc Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Es-eni of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of o
greater or lesser spccificoiion of time, thirty (30) calendar days from
the dote of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, eflective two (2) calendar days after giving
the Contractor notice of icrmittalion;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be tnade under this Agreement
and ordering that the portion of the contract price which would
otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from the date of
such notice until such time as the State determines that the Contractor
has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Coniracion
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any Event
of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eveai of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Not«-ithstanding paragraph 8, the Sute may, at its sole discretion,
icrminatc the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in pan. by thirty
(30) calendar days writtea notice to the Contractor that the State is
exercising its option to lerminaie the AgrccrtKnt.
9.2 la the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall,
at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later
than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of (ennination, a rtpon
(•Terminiiion Report") describing in detail all Services performed,
and the contract price earned, to and Including the date of termination.
In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen
(15) calendar days of notice of early termination, develop and submit
to the State a transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean all
data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, iiKluding, but not limiicd to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
con^titcr programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,
papers, ar>d documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the State,
or purchased with flmds provided for that purpose under (his
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to
the Stale upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other rccord.t shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 9I*A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior wrinen approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE- In the
pcrformarKC of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
bdependent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of the
State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its ofticcrs, employees. 8geni.<i
or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive aoy
benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments provided by the
State to its employees.

12. assignment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least 6ftccn
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such assignment,
delegation, or other transfer Shall be effective without the writtea
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
cunsolidaiion. or a transaction or scries of related transactions in which
a ihird parry, together with li.s afTiliates, becomes the direct or itidireci
owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar
equity mtcrcsts, or combined voting power of the Contractor, or (b) the
sale of all or subsientinlly all of the assets of the Contnictor.
12.3 None of the Ser\'ices shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The Suite is entitled to copies of ell subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provbions contained in a
subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a porty.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold hamiless the State, its officers, and employees from and
against all actions, claims, damages, demai>d.s, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including, without limiiBtion,
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out ofor relating to this Agreement
directly or indirectly arising from death, personal bjury, property
damage, intellectual property infringement, or other claims asserted
against the Stale, its officers, or employees caused by Ihc acts or
omissions of negligence, reckless or willful misconduct, or fratjd by
the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State
shall not be liable for any costs incurred by (he Contractor arising
under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of (be State's
sovereign intrttuniiy. which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
Tills covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive tlx termination of ibis
Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to
obtain and maintain in force, the fotlowicg insurance:
14.1.1 comnxrcial general liability insurance agaiiui all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
S 1.000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparegraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy furms and endoncmenis approved for use in the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificatc(s) of insurance for all
insurance required under this Agreement. At the request of the
Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor shall provide
ccrtincatc(5) of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required
under this Agreement. The cetlificate(s) of insurance and any renewab
thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by referctKC.
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15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agrecmcni. the Contnictor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from, the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("iVorkers'
Compeiuaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall maintain, and require any
subcontractor or assignee to secure artd maintain, paymeoi of Workers*
Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes
to undertake pursuant to this AgrcemenL The Contractor shall fiiinish
the Contracting Oflicer identified in block 1.9, or any successor, proof
of Workers' Compensoiion in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
Btiichcd and ere incnrporoied herein by reference. The State shall not
be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums
or for any oihcr claim or benefit for Contractor, or any subcontmcior
or employee of Coniracior, which might arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation taws in connection with
the pcrfonnance of the Services under (his Agreenaent.

16. WAIVER OP BREACH. A State's failure to enforce iu rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement shall
not act as a waiver of the right of the Sure to later enforce any sucb
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a parry hereto to the other party shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of nulling by
certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales Pusl Office
addressed to the panics at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4,
herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only b)' an instrument in writing signed by the ponies
hereto and ooly after approval ofsuch amendment, waiver or discharge
by the Governor and Executive Council ofthc State ofNew Hampshire
unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant'
to Stale law, lule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in
accordance with (he laws of the State ofNew Hampshire except where
the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The wording used
In this Agreement is the wording chosen by the panics to express (heir

mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in
favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the breach
or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding arbitration,
but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the Mcrrinuck County
Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall have exclusive
Jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between the

icrms of this P>37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any other
portion of this Agreement including any atiachments (hereto, the terms
of (he P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for the
sole benefit of the partie.t hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equiiable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purpose.s only, and the words contatoed therein shall in oo
way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in (he interpretation,
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions set
forth in (be attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, olong with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and c.xpcnsc, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of (his Agreement and
give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SCVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court ofcompctent jurisdiction to be contrary
to any suite or federal law, the remaining provisions of this Agreement
will remain in full force and efTect.

26. EhfriRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may he
executed in a number of counierparu, each of which shall be deemed
an original, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the panics, and supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor
shall deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a
qualified independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every
four years.

3. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an
Agency response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all
0MB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Department of Energy (NH DOE). The audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one

■ month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

4. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been
resolved.

7. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995," the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It Is the
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-
made."

b. Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in pan with federal money, all slates receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to state and local governments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly stale (I) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
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project which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of
federal funds for the project or program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount
of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non
governmental sources."

8. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

9. advances. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program expenditures. Advance program funds arc to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours after being received electronically from the State. CAAs must submit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to NH DOE prior
to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds
must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be cominglcd with any
other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-
dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

10. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rale
is 10 percent.
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Tri-County Community Acnon Program, Inc., hereinafter the Contractor agrees to provide Fuel
Assistance Program services to qualified low-income individuals and agrees to perfomi ail such
services and other work necessary to operate the Program in accordance with (he requirements of
this contract, the principles and objectives set fonh in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures
Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined by NH DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FA?) services will be defined to include the foliowlng categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certificalion of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as
undefined portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance In the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the
State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $5,232,597 (which hereinafter is referred to
as the "Grant")-

Upon the State's receipt of the 2024 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council
approval, the following funds will be authorized;

$382,522 for administration costs, of which $66,941 will be issued as a cash advance;
$4,661,475 for program costs;
$188,600 for Assurance 16.

The dales for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through Sqjtcmber 30,2025.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal fiinds become available.
Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in

accordance with procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program
Procedures Manual.

The Contractor may use up to two percent (2%) of the funds allocated for program costs to pay
for program support expenses. Program support expenses will be defined in an Information
Memoranda issued by the New Hampshire Department of Energy.

CFDA Title:

CFDA No:

Award Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Coniraclor identified in Scciioo 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further ogrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative 1 - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et scq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by Contractor (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department In
each federal fiscal year in lieu of ccftificotcs for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when
the Agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govcnmicni-wide suspension or dcbarmcnt. Contractors
using this form should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 South Fruit St.. Sie. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) • the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drag abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULIURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify ihc employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such coQviction;

(c) Noiilying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numbcr(s) of each afrccted gram;

(f) Tttking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with Ihc requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drog abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (Q-

(0) The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(.s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific gram.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc.,
30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

Check Q if there arc workplaces on file ihat arc not identified here.

Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30,2025
Contractor Name Period covered by this Cerrificaiion

Name and Title of AuthorizcdTontractor Rcprcscnlaiivc

Contractor Representative Signature Dale
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbyijig, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor'.^ representative, as identified in Sections I. II and M 2 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30, 2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an ofTiccr or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an ofificcr or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any fbnds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this ccrtiticalion be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-rccipicnts shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

(^c^^XxXX Of O
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name ^ Date

LrHEAP24 TCCAP Exhibits D thru H
Award n 240INHI.1EA i ̂  Page ]
CFDA«93.568 Iniiials tSLDB'c



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The ConUactor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmcnt, Suspension,
and Oihcr Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Controclor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and l.l2ofthc General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDfNG DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Insfructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will noi necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, (he prospective participanr shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. TIte certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's (NH DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person fVom participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate wriitcn notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any rime the prospective primary participant leams that its
certification was enoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set oui in the Definitions and Coverage sections of (be rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered Iransaetion with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in oil solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, incligibic, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudenl person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of the^ instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARiMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regartling Debarmcnt, Suspension, end Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmcnt, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for ccntmission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obioin, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statures
or commission of cmbcxxlemeni, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this cerlificalion; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to aiiy of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarmcnt, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Poriicipants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Pad 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debaircd, suspended, proposed for debamicnt, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from padicipation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier padicipant is unable to cedify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall anach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier padicipant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Cenification Regarding Dcbanncnt, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transactions.

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name ' Dale
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NEW HAIVfPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION RECARDHS'G THE
AMERICANS N\TTH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections l.ll and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

mi
ConiractOT Represcniaiive Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTmCATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services arc funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpaiicnt drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may rc.sull in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Contractor certifies thai it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The appKcani/contracior further agrees that' it will require ihc language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Sub-contractor shall certify accordingly.

Conrractof Representative Signature Contractor's Rcprescniarivc Title

Contractor Name ^ J Date
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FAP Approval to ObHgite

STATE

KXAMPLt ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit I

First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 538.220.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.^0 357.200.00 6,546,372.60

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 c.oo 0.00 0.00

(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165.551.00 0.00 0.00 1.185,551.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380,821.60

BMCA
-

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,566.00 1.000.00 69,960.00 1,170.209.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00

(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 795,474.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 983,097.00.

SNHS
•

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 64,220.00 1,967,149.00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET • 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00'

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 o;oo 354,578.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612.571.00

SCS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 (
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 161,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 647,617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 54.676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,138.60 1

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455.220.00 757.60 55,110.00 565,763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16. TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1.695.757.00

EXPECTED BUDGET , 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0.00

(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984,00 J
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 62,950.00 1.391,773.00

L[HEAP24 P37 E^biiL
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

and TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiiily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of 530,000 or more. Ifthe initial
award is below 530,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000,
the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensaiion Information), the
New Hampshire Departmervt of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAlCS code for contracls/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
C) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique entity identifier (UEI#)
10) Total compensation and names oftlie top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government, and those
revenues arc greater than $30M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is nrade.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I.I I and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Cf^O
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

CoortV^ (Vc)r^tv\ ^
(Contractor Name) (Date)

LIHEAP 24 TCCAP Exhibit J
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As lhcContrac(or identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEl number for your entity is:.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreemeots; and (2) 530,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answ er to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed underscction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

Ifthe answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compcnsaiion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

LIHEAP 24 TCCAP

Award A 240I NHLIEA
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Sconlan, Sccrclan' of Stale of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. {TRI-COUNTY CAP) is o New Hampshire Nonprolit Corporation registered lo transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrciar)' of Stale's oflicc have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Ccnificaie Number: 0006195524

o

%

I&.

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be atVi.'ced

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 4ih day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrciar\' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo ! , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected board chair of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(CorporationyLLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/sharehcrfdcrs, duty called and .
held on June 27th , 2023 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard CEO and or Randall Pllotte CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the Stale

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remalr\s valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the Slate of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence thai the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(8) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated; _
Signature of Elect
Name; Sandy Alo
Title: Board Chair

Officer

Rev. 03/24/20



ACONO* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
Oats <MMx>(vrYYV]

oeno/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER Of INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RK5HTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE PQUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSUR£R(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certlflcete holder la en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) mual have AODTTtONAL INSURED provMone or be endereed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terme end condltlone of the policy, certain policies mey require en endoreemenL A etatement on
thia cemncate doee not confer rtghts to ttte certificate holder In lieu of tuch endorsemenUe).

PPOOUCER

Cress Insursnce-Msnchester

ItOOElmSt^

Marwhotter NM 03101

Susan SuDvan

(603)fla8-321fl (603)645-4131

inrwpna' manch.certsGcroMagency.com

iMSueentS) affokomo covsiuoe r«Aic »

MuKPP A: Ph&adelpnia Indemnity Ins Co i&ose

wsunso

Trt-County Community Action Program. Inc

30 Excnange Streei

Beiln ' NH 03570

NSiiAFn R r Mldw«8l Employers Casualty Company 23612

MSurLFRC;

waURER 0:

•rSURSne;

MSURER f ■-

THIS IS TO certify THAT THE POtlCES Of INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWrTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOITION Of ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTM RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OP SUCH PCLIOES UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAP CLAIMS.

'tSPI TTfe OF wsuRAWce lma^lwvo{ poixitnumbcp
X COMMCRCUL OCAUUL UAWUTY

OCCURclaimsamoc

OCNLAOOREM

POLICYX
OATE UNITAPPLIE8 PCft

□ SS □
OTHtB:

PHPK2571941 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
lULuceTORSureo—
PWEM'SES (El flccurmtil

MEO EXP l*nr »>*

PERSONAL «*OY»UURY

CfNERALACQRfQATE

PR00UCT3 ■ COMPlOP AGO

Pro/RtsloiuJ LiRbUlty

1.000,000

100.000

5.000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3,000.000

1,000.000

AUTOHOOLC UABILnY

ANY AUTO

OWNGO
AUTOS ONLY
MREO
AUTOS ONLY

COWSMGDSlNOLb'LIMl
(eiAttMtrH 1,000.000

X

BOOtV INJURY (Ptf pMCn)

UU0RCUAUA8

EXCESS LlAB

DCO m

SCNCDULEO
AUTOS
NONOWMEO
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK257I043 07/01/2023 07/01/2024 BOCCV INJURY (Pir MOatnil

PROPERTY OAMAGE
fPf icriagfTtl

OCCUR

gAnmLAce

EACHCCCURWCHCE 2.000.000

PHUe07O54J 07/01/2023 07/01/2024 AOCRECATE 2.000.000

WETEKTTON I 10.000
I OTH.
l.tBWORKERS COUPCHSATTOM

AM) EMPLOYERr UABIL/TY
ANY PROPRIEroniPARTHER/EXECUnvE
OFFlCERMEMftCR EXaUDEO?
(MaMAtMY n NH)

AfloUMundA/olsCWPTiON OP OPERATIONS trtx.

3 WSR
STATUn

T «

0 HCHS20230000S7S (3s,} NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 BJ..EACNACCCCNT 1.000.000

EJ- OHEASE • EA EAgLOYEB 1.000.000

Gi, DISEASE-POLCYllART 1.000,000

OeSCRVTIOH OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIOHS / VEHICLES (ACORO tSI. AM)«onN RwMRu SUiiMl*. iMy bt U iMra )•

Rsfsr to policy for exdusioflsry endorsements and special provisions.

NH DepRrlment of Energy
2) South fruit Sl. Sie. 10

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRAHOH DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTKORlZeO REPRCSENTATtVE

AC(MD2S (2016/03)

e 198S-201S ACORO CORPORATION. All rIgMi reserved.
The ACORO rtsflie end logo are registered marlte of ACORO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT .
stuatham

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, -2022, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30,.
2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misslatement, whether due to.fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fiaancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and'Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud

• may involve collusion, forgery, • intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing staixlards and
Govemment Auditing Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated Tinancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit prociedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on ttle effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliates' 2021
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated November 19, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 15, 2022, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other makers. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over finandal reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal control
over financial reportir^g and compliance.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022



TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATg

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

assets

CURRENT ASSETS

2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

$  3,827,664

977,227
1,807.274

169,196

59,759

138.811

$  3,237,032

1,317.839

1,617,249

216,423

52,985

53.594

Total current assets. 6.979,931 6,495,122

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

12.794:151

(6,088,609)

12.917.935

(5,850,185)

Property, net 6.705.542 7.067,750

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 410,431 439,822

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,095,904 $ 14,002,694

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt S 134.452 $ 129,155
Accounts payable 262,473 4,303
Accrued compensated absences 228,342 233,907
Accrued salaries 81,707 383,435

Accnjed expenses 117,415 266,595
Refundable advances 446.208 324.140
Other liabilities 1,085,406 1,400,645

Total current liabilities 2,356,003 2,742.180

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion 4,442.866 4,577,505

Total liabilities 6.798.869 7.319,685

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 7,037,337 6,199,624

With donor restrictions 259,698 483,385

Total net assets 7,297,035 6,683,009

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 14,095.904 $ 14,002,694



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFRLIATg

CONSOLtOATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor 2022 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Reatrictinns Restrietlona Total

Grants and contracts $ 32.657.364 $  361,664 $ 33.019,026 S 18,711.410
Program funding 1.178.528 1.178.528 1.177.937
Utility programs 1.862.325 1,862,325 2.659.293
In-kind contrfbutfons 228.341 228,341 364.580
Contributions 140,576 140.578 462.340
Fundraising 8,616 8,616 1.802
Rental Income 797,436 797.436 684.169
Interest focome 484 484 886
Gain (loss) on disposal of property 8,874 8.874 (27.288)
Other revenue 4.789 4,789 13 364

Total revenues and other support 36.887,335 361.664 37.248.999 24.048.495

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 585,351 1585.3511 .

Total revenues, other support, end

net assets released from restrictions 37.472,686 (223.687) 37.248,999 24.048.495

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:

Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Workforce Development

Carroll County Dental .
Support Center

Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Activtlies:

General and administrative

Fundraising

Total supportrtg activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

1.453.542

2.792.837

658,956
892.112

62.053

673.708

17,830.850

9.978.945

1.095.578

248.736

35.487.617

1,146.090

1.266

1.147.356

36,634.973

837,713

6.199.624

S  7.037.337

(223,687)

483.385

1,453.842

2,792.837

658.956

892.112

62.053

673.708

17.630,650

9.978,945

1.095.578
248.736

35,487,617

1.146.090

1.266

•  1.147,356

36.634.973

614.026

6.683,009

1,017.860

2,856.419

760.053

870.078
96,617

40.175

669,641

356,359

4.760.909

, 8.541.527
1.192.453

192.010

21.354,301

1.172.988

1.172,988

22.527.289

1,521.206

5.161.603

259.698 S L_297.035 $ 8.683.009

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRr^nUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM tWC AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDAieO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENPeO JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

inieresl

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  614,026 5  1.521,206

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 520.221 450.040

Loss (gain) on disposal of property (8.874) 27.288

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable (190,025) (294.397)
Pledges receivable 47,227 90,594

Inventories (6.774) 49.445

Prepaid expenses (85.217) 24.286

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 258.170 (176,124)
Accrued compensated absences (5.565) (9.872)
Accrued salaries (301.728) 334,376

Accrued expenses (149.180) 129,291

Refundable advances 122.068 142,677

Other liabilities (315.239) 549,663

NET CASH PROVIDED 8Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES 499,110 2,838.475

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property ■  8.874 25.000

Purchases of property and equipment (158.013) (760.217)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (149.139) (755.217)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment on long>term debt (129.342) (523.740)
Repayment on capital lease obligations - (3.554)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (129,342) (527.294)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 220.629 1.555.964

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4.994.693 3,438.729

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR S  5.215,322 S 4,994.693

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

95.593 136,425

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRUCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between TrI-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that progranhs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities Include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property. ^

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their owr] goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTrON PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children in
Carroll. Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain.injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 211 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 41
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 20,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.

10



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization Is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer, skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full

array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and

stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

11



TRI-COUNTY eOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

LoW'Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small, children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

12



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $259,698 and $483,385
at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 13.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
rectassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $446,208 and $324,140 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Incorpe Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All "employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at. the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized .skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncoilected more than

one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $169,196 and $216,423,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values , of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon

the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately 10.95% and
11.37%, respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising pollcv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $6,696 and
$28,130, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying, the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs" The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2022 and 2021.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in tum, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

New Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2020. the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-
for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed
assets or utilities; materials and supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible
assets: and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a, not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in
the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets.
It also requires certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial
assets recognized. The Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1,
2021.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2022
and 2021:

2022

$  3,827,664

2021

$  3.237.032

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services
Program 977,227 1,317.839

Accounts receivable 1,807,274 1,617,249
Pledges receivable 169,196 216,423
Restricted cash 410.431 439.822

Total financial assets 7.191.792 6.828.365

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 259,698 483,385
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services
Program 977,227 1,317,839

Restricted cash 410,431 439,822

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year (207.879) .  (412.665)

Amounts not available within one year 1.439.477 1.828.381

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 5.752.315
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II is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $5,899,000 and $3,569,000 at June 30.
2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

2022 2021

Cash, operations $ 3.827,664 $ 3.237.032
Restricted cash, current 977,227 1.317,839.
Restricted cash, long term 410.431 439.822

Total cash and restricted cash $ 5.215 322 $4.994.693

■Cash Restrictions
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $20,069 and $20,059, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

21
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The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2022 and 2021 was $174,807 and $174,755, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2022 and 2021 was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2022 and 2021
was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash,
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30. 2022 and 2021 was $215,555 and $245,008, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2022 and 2021, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $59,759 and $52,985, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2022:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 10,039,601

2,329,022

6,688

418.840

$4,426,613 $ 5,612,988
1,661,996 667,026

6,688

:  418.840

S6Q88 6QQ ^6 705.542
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Properly consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9,931,953

2,394,489

172.653
418,840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$4,233,084

1,617,101

Net

Book Value

$ 5.698,869

777,388

172,653

418,840

^12.917.935 S 5.850.185 £ 7 067 750

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$519,334 and $449,415, respectively.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2022 and
2021, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $228,342 and $233,907,
respectively.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of
the following:

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027.

2022 2021

$  80,546 $ 96,062
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2022 2021

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
Installmerits of $2,936, including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 261,160 285,268

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040. 2,377,169 2,467,774

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047.

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4.586.475 4,716,704

(9.157) (10.044)

4,577,318 4,706.660

(134.452) (129.155)

$ 4.442.866 $4,577,505

24
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The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Amount

$  134.452

139,981
145.697

151,677

148,112

3.866.576

S 4.586,475

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the tine of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021 at 5.75% and 4.25% per annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $141,820 and $138,598, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating teases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2022, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2023 $ 99,533
2024 43,884

2025 43,884
2026 42,579

2027 3.512

$  233.392

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Professional services and

services for disabled $ 2,479 $ - $ 2,479
Packing, setup, and delivery
of congregate and home
delivered meals : 55.360 55.360

Total S 2.479 £ 55.360 | 57.839

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:
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Head Start Transit Total

Professional services and $ 11,274 $

services for disabled

Volunteer driver program : _

-  $ 11,274

29.663 29.663

Total $  11.^74 ^ 29663 S 4Q937

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $277,300 and $340,000 for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and ,the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows;

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate S  58 230 $ 1.800 S 60 030

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate S  115 433 $ 1.800 $ 117,;^??
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The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows;

Head Start Housing

Employee use of home
Donated goods

Hotel rooms for homeless clients

$  56.788 $ -  $

1.400

52.284

Total

56,788

1.400

52.284

Total i  $^,79? S 53.684 $ 110.472

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Employee use of home

Donated goods

Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Head Start Housing

$  147,567 $

Total

-  $ 147,567

2,385 2,385

56.458 56.458

Total i H7.567 S 58.843 S 2Q641Q

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
approximately $32,598,596 (88%) and $18,238,690 (76%), respectiyely, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, approximately 67% and 68%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30. 2022 and 202.1;

2022 2021

Temporary Municipal Funding $  169,196 $ 216,423
Restricted Buildings 38,084 39,913
Loans - HSGP 24,234 24,403
FAP/EAP 12,079 16,330
RSVP Program Funds 6,255 5,887
CC Coos 6,132 -

Head Start 2,370 .

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 500

CC Carrol! 427 .

CC Grafton ' 421 .

Head Start - 5,856
10 Bricks Shelter Funds . 17

FAP - 174.056

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 259 698

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be'liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin. New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions.for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. The Organization accrued $41,291 as of June 30, 2022
as that is the expected amount that the Organization will be held liable for.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $208,162 and $181,723 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $3,003 and $59,517 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Under the regulatory agreement. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s is required to set
aside amounts for the return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2022 and 2021
$4,390 and $3,768, respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are
not available for operating purposes.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30. 2022.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 15. 2022. which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCHCOULE Of EXPCMOrUttES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EWOEP JUWE 30 tm

GRANTORS

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH DEMTIFTINO FEDERAL

FEDERAL CRAKTOR/PROORAM TITLE ALN GRANTOirS NAME - NUMBER EXPCNOmjRES

U.S. Oeewmw* el MaaRh HW Neman S«#WM

HEAD START CLUSTER

HaedStan 83.B00 OtCHOt 193643140 %  1.409.171
HtMSian n.eoo 0lCH0t19364240 1,175.150
CRSSA^iaad Stan 93.600 OtK0012514l41 14.097
ARPA^laad Start •3.600 0>HE0012S1414l 102741

aUSTER TOTAL 2 781 159

l.iie iwnfiia HwnaEnaagv Aaiiitanca •1566 StaiaeiNa*' 1 lampmira OBea d Enargy arto Warming G-21BINHLIEA 1.440.023
La* tnoMTN Mcma Enatyy Aamtanca •3.566 SutadNae' Hampdara OBca d Energy and Rarrmg 529CARP22 5.606.465
CV4.e» InciMin Home Enetgy Aaabtanoa 93.566 SusadNM' Hampinira ORKa d Energy end nanrtog 2001NHE5C3 409.927
La* mcoiet Hema Enaagr Auiwanca 93.566 SuiaoiNae' HampiTira OOca d Energy and PlarrPtg G-200ll*1UEA 193.625
ARRA^p* Ineeana Ham Enargy AiNitanca 91566 StataolNte' iiampitira Once d Energy ard AarrPg G-2001IPIUEA 468.300

-  TOTAL 6.199.000

ACMC CLUSTER

Spadal Program* tor tfia Aging ■ TiOa dl, Part B • Crana tor Supportiva Sarvic** and Senior Cantor* (SEAS) 93.044 StatadNpn' Mamptfwt once d Energy andPtarwing 16AAM<T3SS 6.216
SpadN Program* tar ma Af^ • TiOa Ri. Pan B • Craru tor Scppeniv* Sarvtaa* and Senior Ceraen (Sr. Vitiaeta) 91044 StataoiNae' Hamptfare Oepartmani d Haaim end Hunan Service* 512-S003S2 91009

TOTAL 97.227

SpaeM PioyanU tar ma Aging. TIM III, Pan C • Nutrtaon Servtaa* (Congragata A HO UaWi) 93.043 StataoiNaw' Mamp*Bire Oepartrrunt d I ltdm and Human Sersice* 54i-aoQ3a» 284.400
Megrarrt* tar ma Aging • Ti9a 01. Part C • HOCS 93.043 State oTNaa' Hampirtre Oepertmem d Hedm and Hunan Serviea* 56.750

Cv-Spadc* Program* lor ma Aging-TUa IS. Pan C • NutrtSon Sarvtaea (Congregan 1 tO uaani 93.04$ SiataoiNae' HampMPa Oepetmen d Hedm and Munan Swviee* 15612

TOTAL 356 642

NucrOon Sarviea* Ineandve Program (NSIP) 93.053 SiatadNmi1 Hampdire Departman d Hetim and Hunan Sarvkes NONE 88714

CLUSTER TOTAL 544.263

Communiiy Sendee* Biecfc Gram 93.569 Statadtto*' Hampaiete Dapartmcra d HeaOi artd tk«nen Sar^ea* I02-500731

CV • Comrrxmi(|r Sanaca* Stock Gran 93.509 SistadiWw11 tantotf aa Oepanwen d i ladm and tkiiwn Sarvtaa* 102400731 707 450

TOTAL 707 450

Temporary Aaaisunca lor naaa> FaniSe* (WtC) 93.556 StaiadMae' Hampcnira Oapanmant d Hadm and Hunan Sarvteae teOONHTANF 24 600

AoioiSa* lo Support STLT HeWi Oaparaaani Raaponaa to Pubtc Ha«Oi or Hatoihcar* Criaaa •3.391 SutodNao' Hamp*rPa Dcpanmen d Hadli and Hunan Sar^cas IPT7SOT00003I 21.162

SociN SorvicM Btodi Crara (Tida XX l&R) 93.667 SiatadNae' HampttPa Daparvnam d Haatm and Hunan Sarvica* 54S400087 106.637
SoeU Sorvica* Stock Gran* rnsa XX K)) 93.667 StaiadNae' Hamp*nira Oaparvnam d HaaOi and Hunan Sarvica* 544400386 65.043
SodN SarviCM Btodt Grant (GuarOaraRip) 93.667 SutadNae' Hamp*nira Dapanmem d Haacm and Hunan Sar^ca* 1Q2400731 13.742

' TOTAL 705 47?

ProMdar Rriiel Fend 91496 75.211

l>totacts tor AstHtanea in Transiaien aom Hornemsne** 93.150 SutadNmt' HampUwa Odea d Human Service*. Buaau d Hcmclai* 06-95-42-423010-7926 52.372

TaUl U.S. Ow«vncrt o( Hetfh and Hhanan SarvicM iZMoas?
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SCHEDULE Of EXPENOtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EMOED JUWE M.

FEDERAL GRANTORfPROGRAM TmE

FEDERAL

ALN

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTORS

tDENTIFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENOITX/RES

11^. D»OBrtm»m of FMftiv

WMSMrizadon AMsUncA tor LmMncerm Perww 81.042 State of Now Hampshiro GovemoFt Olfca ol Energy 6 Communtty Sernct EE000793S 5 M2.209

Total U.S. Oepariment of Eneroy 8 302.299

U.S. CocDorwIoo for Haitooat *od Comrmmttv Sorvfca

RatiroO ond Senior Voluntoor.Program 04.002 19SRANH001 S 87.706

TotM U.S. Corpfitieo for Nationai and Corrvnuniiy Servico 5 87.708

US. Dcoartrrtent of Aarictithiro

Cnu and Adtii Caro Food Program '• 10.558 State of New Hampshira Department of Education NONE 5 135.249

FOOD OtSTRlBunON CLUSTER

Emergency Food AsatsiarKO Program 10.589 BMCAP CLUSTER TOTAL 17.269

Total U.S. Oeparaneru of AgricUturo t 152.516

US. DoMrtmorM of Tranooorialion

Fonraaa Grants lor Rural Artos (Sociion &3t1) 20.SO9 State of New Hampshsa Depaftmem ol Transportation NH-18-X046 % 363.553

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enharwed lAotilBry of Soniort and Indtvidudt oath D>aabifit>»> 20.513 Stale ol New Hampshire Oepartmem of Transponadon NH-e5-xooe

CLUSTER TOTAL '

145.560

145.560

Total U.S. Oepanmem of Trantporwion i 529.113

II S Oaoartmant of HoualfM and Urban Davatoemant

EmergerKy Solulions Grant Progranr
CV-Emergancy Solutions Cram Program

14.231

14.231

Stale of New Hampshiro Oepanmem of I loaitn ana Human Services

State of NH Goverrwr's OfSca tot Enwrgency Redcf & Recovery
102-500731

a&.MI1^XHSoa-CMERo. u

TOTAL

8 10.543

487.492

478.035

Continuum of Cara Piogram (HOtP)
Comkiuutn of Cara Program (HOlP)

Continuum of Care Program (HOIP)

14.287

14.267

14.287

Slate of New MafrptWra Oepartmem of HaaCh and Human Servicas
State of New Hampshira Department of HaaCn end Human Servtoas

Stale cl New Hampshira Oepartmem ol Health arto Human Servicas

nBototiwoian

ss-a1e»*is4Kew*o«

NHOmTlCOOliO

32.704

130.258

42.722

rOTAL 205.884

Total U.S Department ol Housatg and Urtian Dawtopment 8 683.719



TB>^QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC.

SCKEOULE OF EXPEHOTTURES OF FEOERAt AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EWDED JUNE »0. WK

FEDERAL GRANTORfPROGRAM T1TU

FEDERAL

ALN

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTOR'S

IDCKnFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

exPENorruRES

UA. Deoertmeni of ihe Treeeurv

CdreneWvis Refef Furtd

Coronavlnts Retef Furtd

Cerenevlrvs ReM Furtd

2t.0t«

2t.0t«

21.019

Stale ol NH Governor's OfOce ol Emergettey ReSef ertd Roeovery
Shelter Program
State d NH Governor's OfSco ol Emergency ReSd and Recovery
Housing StaMbetion Ftatd
Stale of NH Governor's OfSce ol Entctgeney Rdiel «td Reoorery
HeMthcere System ReCef

TOTAL

39.930

2S2

10.000

90.108

Emergartcy Rental Assistance Program 21.023 NH Houslrtg retanca Autoority 10.704.198

Total U.S. Oepanmert ol toe Treasury I  10.834.380

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S  31.100.600

NOTF A ■ e*S« OF PRESEWTATWN

Tha •covnpanyWo Khoduto ol expenditures q< Federd A««rds («w Sdtedule) includes the tederd rwart ecdviiy ol Trf-CMoitr Cemmurtity Aolon Pregram. Inc. under programs el the lederd gevemmeni lot dte year ended June 30. 2022. The Informaiion in
Ms Scttedule b ptesertied In eccordance wdh the requirements d TUe 2 U.S. Code ol Ftderd Regutetions Part 200. UndOrm AdmMsiraW* Reguremenn. Cosr PrMplts. and Aucfi (ftqidnmtnls tor Fedenf Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because (he
SdMdtie presenu ody a aetoeted porten ol toe operations ol Tri-County Communiiy Action Program. Inc.. d Is not intended to and dees not presetu the Anatsdd pesiiion. changes In net assets, or cash aows of the Organlzaiien.

MOTE e • SUMSSARY OF SICWFICAHT ACCOUSmWG POUaES

E;q>«sa!tiaes reported on itw Scneduls are reported on me acciud Isasb ol accuutttirtg. Sudt ezpendltiaes are recogrfaed Icdciwiiig toe cost principtts contairted in Uniform Gudance. wncrcto certain types ol expertditures
rcenburMmonL Negative emounts shoom on the SchediAe represent adfusanertts or oedits made in toe normd eotfse ol busineea to ameurds reported as expenditures in prior yaars.

eta not tfoMabte or ere Imdad as Id

NOTE C . ISIDIReCT RATE

Tri-County ComrrHMiy Action Program Inc has eleoed to not use «>e tO-pcrcem de mMmb indimct cost rate aPovred under Ote Uniform Guidertee.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and
2021, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15,
2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, (nc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Prograrn, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or delected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
Our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the CMS Compliance Supplerhent
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Stales; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGSyVND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Head Start-ALN 93.600

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Aging Cluster - ALN 93.044,
93.045, 93.053

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $934,818.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Fuel Assistance Kev Personnel

Name Job Tlile Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $132,000 0%

Randall Pilotte •Chief Financial Officer $90,000 . 0%

Brenda Gagne Chief Program Officer $77,080 0%

Joshua Poissoh Program Director $50,000 50% $25,000



Jeanne L. Robillard

CORE STHEIVCTHS

Program development, management and administration • Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet fundcr standards

Grant writing and management * Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving * Capacity building

Professional presentations * Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imaginadon ♦ Detcnninadon • Fortitude

PH0FESS10]\AL EXPERHEIVCE

Tri«Coniity Commonity Aciaon Prodrome, Ine.
Clurf ExMotivc OEiiccr

Berlin, fVH 20IS • current FT emptoyment

Tri*CnDnf7 Cotnmtiiiilj Action Progranut, Inc.
Chief Operotlng Officer
Berlin. Nil 2016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that pn)vidc over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Ditcccors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; raccical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to Improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Communit}' Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service trudativcs. Provide lacdcal guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily opcradons of programs.

Tri-Coanij CAmmniuaT Acfion Progrnms. Inc.
Division Director: TCCAP Prevention $cr\'iees

Berlin. Nil 20IS-20I6

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prcvcnuon Services; oversee
dixdsion resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local iruriarrvcs relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
coliabocacc with stakeholders and elected officials, including prescnung Icgisladve testimony.

Tri-Coontj Cnmmanily Advoo Programs. Inc.
Program/Division Director: Sapporl Center ot Borch Boose
Littleton. New nampshire 2007-2015
Oversee daily opcradon and supervision of domcsdc and sexual violence crisis center and residenual
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct vicdm advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and matkcdng strategics; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JLRobiIIard*2

Bookkeeper: Woincn'fl Burol Entrcprcneariol Network (WHEN>
Dcikletieixi* Nil cnrrent PT cmplojviciit

Responsible for gram fiscal (racking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciiiarions fot bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, tetail and marker sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliarion for I'hrcc retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Connty Commanily Action Programs, Inc.
Direct Services/Volnotccr Coordinator: Sapport Center at Uorch lloose
Littleton, New Hampshire 1097 to 3007
Provide advocacy and direct ser\ticc to Nnctims of domestic and sexual violence; super\'ise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency .sy.stems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaign.^; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-calJ coverage of crisis line

Director: floverhill Areo Jnvenile Diveraaon Program

Wootlsville, New Uampahire I099«300l
Recruit, train, and supcrNnsc volunteer diversion commitcccs; establish communic)' programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships bcraxcn the court
system, luvcnile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; communic)' outreach and education

Coanscior/Tille 1 Teoehcr: Northern Fanulr Inalitutc-Jcfferson Shelter
JeDeroon, New Dampshirc 1990*1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facibtate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily livuig skills

Edncaiion

BS in Iliunan Servieea, Spruigtieid College School ol llomoo Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Craduattd mtb 4.0 CPA

AS in Brag onri Alcohol Rehabilitofion ConnselJiig IDARC ProgramI
Southern Conncclicul Community College, New Bovun, CT

Additional Progcssional Lendcrfltbip and Coic AKil'ftMQPg

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen. Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Albance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treaturrr 1996-199S
♦ Chairman, Havcrhill Area Family Violence Council 199S-2003
♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Imcrvenrion Program Inscruccor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; indieidualMmber 2001i-20l7
♦  fkchlchcm Planning Board 2010 - 201$
♦ Bethkhem Conservation Commission 2006 ■ nrnnt

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Coinmcndadon-Divi.sion Director .\ward, 29/?
♦ Bethlehem Gtiacn's Advisory Comnuitec on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- current
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocabst/Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jaz7. Vocalist 1997-current
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating As.sociation/lntcmational Skating Institute atrrrnt s'tnce 1993



Brenda Gagnc
Chief Program Officer

Tri Count)' Communih' Action Program Inc.

Professicnai Summary:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience;

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 • Present

Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Chief ProgT3ms Officer

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St.

Berlin NH 03570

5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include;
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carrol! Counties.

Trl-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St

Berlin NH 03570

7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
♦Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit sen'icc.
♦Facility Management.
♦Gathering statistics
♦Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
♦Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
♦Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
♦Creating procedure manuals
♦Grant writing
♦Budget preparation
♦Writing Warrant Articles
♦Drug & Alcohol Testing
♦Emergency Preparedness
Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96
MUao, N.H. 03588
5/1995 - 1/2004
Accounts Manager/Office Manager
Responsibilities included;
♦Customer service.
♦Accounting using Quick Books Pro.



♦Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
•Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
•Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
•Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
•Data Entry.
•Phone communications and general secretarial duties.
Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
P.O. Box 300
MUan, N.H. 03588
6/1997-3/2002
Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities tncluded;
•Directed and implemented sports and recreational progmms for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets.
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizing and-supcrvising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.
Education:

•  Graduate GoHiam High School
Gprham NH

•  Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Aloohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.
Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State Transit Conference
•9/2007. 10/2008, 10/2010.9/201 1. 9/2013.9/2014, 9/2016,9/2017
Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accountingprofcssiona! wilh over 29 yearsof experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Poyablcs Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sale.s/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

TRT-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. NH 06/20l3-Prcsent

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committcclo identify performance goals for Ihc Agency and to
maintain systcmsto monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of S18M.

Prepare/providcscomplctcand accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies.
As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, train, direct andevaluatc employee pcrformaiKC within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.
Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP'S facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.
Prepared fivc-ycar debt reduction plan.

"iscfll Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)
Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts arc analyzed and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (201S-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010) . '

•  Ensured an accurate and timely momhiy and year end close, consisting of (he prepardtion of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance vvith GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 rclail stores with
gross revenues in excess of S200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing Journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a stalTaccountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliadons, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state paynroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid -Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales^se tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
«  Pro-activcly coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals.

•  Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounring Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chan of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processingand payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/PayroU Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLfN PIFRCE COLLEGE. Concord, NH



Nathan tLMUte.^

PRnmSTOWAL SlIMMAflV and SCTII^

Op^ttons f^ndger with ecperlence and over^ite of Rnandal, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for nooi^rofit or^nlzattons and smal) businesses. Professional; flexfble wftti proven
analytical dd/ls. Denonstrated record of effecOve problem soMrig; sound budness judgement and
customer servtoc.

BumLsOevetapnentnannlngeiBudgeang ^ Soff and Su^ccntrsctDr Management
^ SBga/MIPMfDdAccDuntln9.GAAPaR0MA CBcnt ft Vmdor ftcMons

ABSt MmBffcment V&hmteer Retsttons
Ertenslve daffr use or Mloosofl Excel •' Crtftate, LEAN SbtSgTno Green Bd^USM 2016
Owtrect Negotiation Mmrestrtiton a Compoance Ceftflata, Ptojeci Management. USH 2Dt4

paOPKSlQNAL

Dlvfsten Operations Manager Since AprO 2019
TrKburty CootfiHJrtftjr AcOot. PTcigreni; Berfin, New Ka mpMre

Operational, Administrallve and Fiscal overelte for Government and Utility funded programs that
provWe home eflUency, Insulation end heating system upgrades to Income eOglbte households in
CtiJToli; Coos and Oefton Counties, New Hampshire.

• opeatforaioy«dditonAS7tyHEA«ndK?wS.vdFedffalOOeandOHHSIoivlncDmeWeathertz3tiDn;HeMSyitem
repair wi replaoefBert progreffa.

• OveieeaO^eds of RogramOpcreOons end Project Hina9«neRtfe>dudlng;prooremaud9et(Mcpment and
•uthortetton of e^^lUrres accordhg to rarmctad budget agreemenli. dient dlglbHty and pmgrajn aampllancs,
liirlr^ trefnlng, luperylstng and evcdustbig department staff.

Inside Production Manager
7C HaJtad Basefnem SfSBms, wets, ME 2010

Inside Production Manager respcnslbie for managing scheduling and dose out of diy basemen
systems Installs.

• Uaiscn wRh homeowner throughout scheduling/ install and cteecut processes. Liatson wth sates teem end Outdde
production Himager to ensuo pRK>raal trrstzUBtion and materf&l costs met cSent e^ectatioro/ oompanr standards
arvi warranty recpdrements tar bosement systems.

Project Manager
PATCO Cbnstnodofl, Sanftrd; ME " 2018
Project Manager responsible for managing residentlal home construction process throughout the
planning; scheduling; material procuranent and construcbon processes.

• U^on to homeowner throughout entPeconstmaion process fremeDntroct signing to dodrtg. Wceftly telephone
update and chsigavder estimate and marogqncnt Malntatn masttr tchedulo on BUIdg Thend projea manogemerA
loftNsre. Schedule sub-contractom Inspect wort tDproJcttspet; Issue fwwrk and approve Invotees for payment
3oO cost ovedbv maticrtali ordertng end Inventory management.

Phactor, Housing and EnergySaviees 2009-2016
TheOppottunftyAfllanoB.SoitihPartfand, HE



Gerald F. Milliken, Jr.

EKOCutlve Summaitf

Enfhusiasllc. (JedJcatDd end hardwwklng professional, offert^ over 20 yesre of
broad-based experience In Project Oirectton. polcy and procedural development,
training & development, budget administration and business operattons wttWnfest-.
paced environmenL

Trl-CountyCemmunny Action Program,Inc.
Departroent Head: Wealhertzatlon & Faeinttos OpcratfOTO

BerCn,NH
7-1-2020toprasftnt

Deiign and OperatfonaJ gufdarwe of weathcrualion Prograns and the Agenetes Fadaies
Depwtment Observe, andyzo. and ofter suggestions on currant oparstlortt.
EstabOsMng professional relaltonshlps wtlh cllenta, staff, ar>d other stttoholders.
Msintdnlng relationships wtth dients and fhdhg craaBva araya to expand the programs
effecUveness.

Til-County Community Action Prograrrv Inc.
Pragrsffl Manegorf DImetoR WoatheifeaHon a Emptoyment Programe

Bertn.NH
4-1-iato 6-31-2020

Provide teaderehlp and oversight to program'e operaflons, budgets and rapoftlng; -
Coordlrrais end Integrsta programs' ecHvlUes.
Hire, supervise and .manage staff, Including In-house and Itinerant empioyoes.
Prepare grsUs and propoecds.
Davelop, prepweand tinptemont program budgets, narrsilves.
Review and rccondte program financial reports for rebribursament
Interact wtth program monitors, outside audkora, Federal agency ojdltors ar>d others In
review of progrwn edMltee. compDanco and flnanda) acoountADRy
Develop new programs and funding stroams ea epproprtata.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Crew Chief/ State Certified Energy Auditor BerBn. NH 5-1-05 to 4-1-15



Northern Exprm Eatery. I"®- North Conway. NH
PresWant I General Manas"' 11-1-2002 to 5-1 &-2005
Estimated food and boverase costs, requisiticntno and purchasing suwses
Assisted subonfinates in Identifying end resoMng probtema.
Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
acUvtties.

Directed hiring and assignment of porsonijeL
Investlgaled and reso^ed food qu^rty and service complainta.
Maintained all records and produced reports.
Executed dally operHttons of restaurant mer^agcment

Hatfleld-Reynohls Eloctrtc en lES, Inc. Company Pboentx. AZ
Project Manaaef 5.16-2000 to 10-30-2002
ADplied knowledgo of the constnrctton trade in the dally operation^ duties.
ReSwed orolect propoaab to detarmlne Dme frame, funding rmitatkm^ procedures
for Accomplishing projet^ staffing requirementa and allolment of avaflaWe resources
to various phases of prints.

B0Erferpfbe3.lnc. 2D00
PiesMenti Genere/Mansger B-M904toW5-2000Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC. INC. and changed the
Contracted to perform specified constructJon wort;
accordance with archttecfs plans, blueprints, codes
Estimated costs of matertab. latwr snd use of equipment required to fulfHt provisiorw
of ccrtract and prepared bids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terms of contract
Assisted subordinates In Identifying and resolylng problems.
Demonstrated effective presentation sKffis.



Education:

NHTl Concord
Associates Degree in Electronic Technology 198S
Theory

LRCC Lficonia
ElectrlcaJ Systems Instellation & Matntenence, 1988
RequM for Joumaymen electrical testing and State
Licenses.

Additional Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing for norv proflts.To enhance my position on the
board of at ChUdren UntlmitBd, Inc.
Successfully completed GE'eprestiglous 'SIX SIGMA* management course in 2001
White implied with
HatfleW-Reynotds Electric en lES, he. Company Phoenix. AZ.
Successfully completed training courses and seminars for.laad safe wcrX practices,
asbestos awareness, OSHA30, CPR.electr1calcodeupdates.
SuccessfuDycomptated Business management classes in AZ
Ouringthe 199&-2001.
Successfully completed training and testing to be a NH State certifted Energy Auditor
In 2006.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc., Conway NH 'Non- Profit"
Board member Berlin Revttattzatlon Committee. Berlin NH "Non- Profit*
Past member of the advisory board and cosigner for the Myotonic Dystrophy
Foundations first website.
Previous owner and webmastar for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

Ucerue:

Held an ElectricaJ Journeyman Scer^se NH
Held an Eiectrteal Contractor License AZ

References: AvaflaUe upon request.



&»Iness, Rscat Operattonal and Compliance responslWIIty for fedefaDy funded programs that pwWe
home enecgy and emcr9ency assistance, HQS home repair, and home effteency and Insubtton
upgrades ts Income efigble households in Cumhertand and York County, Maine.

• Contract Operat^ end Rgzlovertitytt of Federal DOE end DHHS low trKomeW^BltflfatLCenrwl Heat
Impovemenl end EflVteney Heine conservation prognore.

#

end ainyllanoe f&r Federel DHHS UHEAP Gran^ provWnfl home hating beneflts to eppfoodrately 3 500
to«Hi«rneCunjbeftar>dCourjtyhq«fiold$«r;aly. j.aww

• f^^raeeOayeairfProprani and PrcpeaMenagernent including; dent dWMttty end [yporanimmtaanmnfrmi^;
S  Qgnbrtftd County Cbnynunfty Deweiopmgtt. Prooram

Managed all budness acdvfty for national cataloger providing Office of the Registrer course catalog
and other legally binding dOGiments to coDeges and universities In the United Slates and Canada/
AceotaffoffAMloetata 20IM - 2mG
Sodhem Hite Agency on Agtng, Sortxirough, HE

Respondble for business office functions of AP/AR and PayroD for non-proftt agency. In tWs posltton. I
was accounting fialson for a variety of programs among otftcrs, and was respondbte fdraoajrate
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

Managing studio pl^rapher for New England^ first digital commerdal photography studio
responsible for project management, process woridtow, and capacity and demand management

filWTlPri

BacheJorofArtB, Geography
iMvmayafM»!ns, fimk^ton, tsas

tontlnarng Shidle^ Buslneas, Aooountfng, Project Management and Human Resourou
(Movfy or Souoiern ongotig

COMHUWiTYSgpvrrF

Biddefbrd School Committee, Vice Chatrman

• ̂<h*naaQfTtciiumOomn«tee;F?neraCommMee;Pe«nntiCdmmItt6e;OilefNcgoifc6or(Ct)todhe
Served durti)opo1od Chat «Jioolsw»nunde/took a $30 mOflon doOer lojwaflm afBdddbrd Kgh School.

Gentrai AmeHca Vdunteer work
HeroSa, Cbsta ftlo a San Bmwflno Guatemala

• T<^toC^Woin2006a<ki8ftn«laln2008wtthawluntewt®mcobuI«»Ombeffrwn8%wztioralcwteraf)d
W8w lUnoon cysOam.

fte^nnces afgOaUs vpon nguest



Dennis Downs
TT

Professional Summary

Stilled Eocrgy Auditor wifii experience in the Energy CooservBtion industry. Familinr with a House as a System.
Experienced in Blower Door Tesdng.

- Skills —
• Self-motivated • Goal oriented fast Jeamer

• Strong vahal oommunicatioD • Make safety a priority
a Mechanically Inclined • Committed to makiDg the client happy
• Accustomed to working in all weather conditions • Have knowledge ofhand end power tools
• Eager to learnnew aidlls

Work History

Production Superviior, 04/1994 to Currenl

Tri County CAP-30 Exchuiffi St Berlin NH 03570
•  Supervise muItipTe weatfaerization teams doing rin^ Amily and multi-5unily installadans.
• Oversee maintenance and management of warehouse, incluifa'Dg keeping inventory and ordering of

materials.

• Perform energy audits to determine the most cost effective enagy improvements.
• Obtained docomenti, cleaninoes, certificates and approvals from local, rtste, and federal agencies.
•  Production management of crews to meet deadlroca and budget objectives.
• Working directly with client to achieve a more energy efficient home.

Pecker/Incpector, 09/1993 to 04/1994

JenFoot Amaica Inc - Littleton hdustiial Pazk Littleton NH 03561

• Managed a line ofthree to four wodceis.
•  Impected rubber boots for imperfectioni.

Laborer, 07/1993 to 09/1993

LA Enviroomental - Looseville Kmtucky
• Helped remove shidge from the pollution control lagoons at Simpson Paper Co in Oilman VT.

Apprentice Electrician, 10/1992 to 02/1993
Royal Electric - WoodsviSe NH

• Work under multiple master dectricians wiring the new Lisbon School.

EDUCATION

Associate of At^hed Science; Electhcal Construction, 1992
NH Vocatiooal Technical CoDege - Prescott Hill, Leconia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS-

•  BPl Quality Conirol Inspector • BPI Energy Auditor
•  Lead Safe Rcaovator • CPR/Flrst Aid

•  OSHA30 * Valid Driven License



JESSICA YQUm Trxr

1

Skills

*Openittonal leadership

'Reporting Requirements
'Proactive Mindset

* Persuasive Communration

Style

* Document Management

•Team Oriented

Education

May 20U-White

Mountain CommunitY

College, Berlin NH

Associates Degree-

Business

MsrugemenVMedical

Concerttrvtlon

Professional Summary

Muttl-taJented Program Supervisor driven to optimize processes and Improve

producttvliy to maximize program successes. Extensive experience In management with

a strong work ethic. Excelling and nftBlirtBintng ftnandal documentation and reporting to
department heads. Polite wfth a professional approach to deliv tasks. Ready to take

each yearof my Tri-County Community Action Program carnr to the next level as the

Qfnce/Program Supervtsorforthe Weatherlzatlon Department

Work Experience

Offlce/ProgTcnn SuoervtiOR Tr1«Courtv CAP. Berlin HH: Aorll 20ia>Currant

tn this position I am resporalble for program end office functions of the Weatherlzation

Departnrwnt. My resporutbilHies Indude supervising, providing quality o^rslte.

Inquiring performonoe measurement supply training, and/orcoordination of trainfr^g

for the office staff, in coordination wtth the Division Director, my role is to record
revenues and expenses to our flseal department Invoice our hinders for payment of

services completed by our weatheilzaUon department I provide guidance to our office
staff on dlent Intake with a priority scheduling focus. I do work collaboretiveiy with the

ProductlonSupervlsorensurlngthe schedufing of energy audits Is sufficient > procure
Job suppBes and materials for weatherlzatlon Jobs, and giva guidance to the

coofdlnetlon of heating system installations for both falling heating systems and !
emergency no-heot situations. I em here to provide supervision and leadership to office

staff, presently Including; the WeatittrfzatlonAdmfnlstratorBnd the Procurement ! * '
inventpry and Facilities SpeclaDst.

Office Manager Gorham Pamtiv Dentists. Gofham HH: May lOll- Mav 201B

Supervised a total of 6 staff members. Managed IT problems and Issues with research and technical support Controlled
computer Issues by trouble-shooting Issues in the network. Mabrtarned computerized schedules for 3 docton and 2

hyglenlsts. Implemented a plan for eadi new student dentist horn UNE every 3 months. Handled Insurance claims,

entered Imurence payments, adjusted patients led^rs, and admlnlstared bills via mall. Answered muttHlna telephone
while checking patients In and out Created treatment plans end discussed payment options with patients. Was
responsible foe staff and patient refatlons. Created marketing Ideas forFacebook and nevopapers. Trained staff on hvnt
end procedures. Enforced HIPAA gufdefines by coordinating annual trainings for HIPAA compliance. Scheduled meetings
for open enrollment and coordinated Aflac representation to assist with secondary options.

Curtomer Senrlca Manager. Walmsrt. Gorham NH: October 2000-0ctober 1008

Supervised staff members ftom several departments throughout the store. Trained new hires on front end procedures
and effective time management Scheduled cashiers and service desk associate to designated areas while maintaining
the schedule throughout the day Implementing reliefs for breaks lunchei^ and end of shifts. Attended Share Holdtrs

nieetlngs in reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed storewlde associate register Issues and/or
customer relation questions. Collected surplus of cash In register tills to drop off to the accounting office. Designated
associates during each shift to assist with reorganizing the itodt on shelves for customer accessibility.



Samantha Roy

Qualiiicaoons _
ACCUBATS I HFFICIEhrr| DETAHJOD

^ RaiQQAl
^ Moetfe-BodOoria^
^ lOKcrb^Tooh
^ Tu R^mm Prrpmaan

^ Aceounda^ Seftwc
/* ILx£t] ̂ radfbeeu
^ KGooioft Woid

^ Powtr Palnf

Ceraptdtcachre Knowledge of tsowdng pnndplct, pijrolK end in Itvi. Eitnotdmuy aRcadon co ddall widi
kecD ibiCqr to pwpw and a«ul^ finaodal icpoitL Hipatiac in Vord, Rxod, QbuKBooKj aoftvcK, and ax
peepaadoo aoftvtx FimtKar wiris eataing daa. filing, aemaog invoieo, biEiiog. and paying cmplojeo. W3Iingna«
to go tborc nd bejond |ob deniptioo. Past (eacner vitb piorea abSty to adapt to new cecfaMlogy, psxxduia,
and o£5a cqupmenr.

Aicae ofExpcrdBe .
^ Amranta Pajable/BeoeNible
^ Reccptioatit

Dta lopot
BvtK RccoodHiaiioa

Pf ofessional Experience
WEATHERlZATIONADMrNTfiTRATOR

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNiry ACTION PROGRAM NH 03570 601-752.7001
EJcvoi montba opecmee ia dedeil aod coottllaatiOQ voiK. Dutiea inchjdc aMtntaioiag hesdag lyitBTu
ptognuns daa coUeoioo, usistiDgwiib traKbeoiaax) oponin^ eooediaating beat lyttan wotk, p^erwotfc,
ai^caotaoDx cootnra, twa'ving aad ptocanog dieat cdla bt al! pAgnsu and fimdlag, ropoadi^ to
call*, icfisnla, tad Aid Tcodon, mantgtng vodteriaaaOQ flcs, aod pofbamtag basic ofifia fiiaetiofli.
SERVrCEADVTSQR

BERJJN CITY FORD Goritini,NH 03570 603-752-6644
EViur yon apoicaee of derica! vod aod custome aemoe Oiil)' dotia iadodod etaaaglBg groop of teduiidaoi
and dispatching wnrit aa achedtded. Wotk indudcd: antvenng pb/>nca. curntner itrvice, fifing, coping invoioea.
typing, daca entry, tecotdiog and mddng inTcnioty, inputting new ievcninry, iavuldag, promoting and acDlng
icrHce, aaaaging teduudna, and maiatatniog aaoona pjjddc tttd aecnuoa iccsvabk.

nSffTPF ^^''RfiTT^NTATrVR
PORTLAND GLASS Gorhan».NH0358l 603-752-5507
Two yeut capcuenee of tJerkal voiK u atl Inside SiJo K^feaentadrc aod upecadog of the icucc daDy. Dudo
ifidudedb answetiog phonei, cmtonw serrio^ filng, onpytfi^ iaveioD^ achednlm^ ({uoting, typtog, data CDtry,
taoathiy iovcttteiy, teccMag ptoduo. oadedng pioduct, tteeviog tad coding bifis, ecpcDK t^na, oialdag buK
depOMts, doscour t^ona, eoataccng vtsdota, oitcsicg payroll, wage tiuigaa. aad moodily'fiaiadil lUtaaeita.

Volunteer Experience
VOLUNfraER TAX PRHPAM>R

PAMaYRBSOURCE CENTER Gorhun.NH 03581 603-466-5190
Vohaitmcd for the VITA ProgrsaL Aceucareiy wotiteiS oo and pnpatcd ladividuai and SmO Buaiaeia Faioal
larooe Tea tetuss. AsaJited ia tbe pnpmtien of Vcsmoot ttase oo tRiont, b well n Resident Afia'i cat
mama. captbia ofpr^xriag us moms vitb aodai leomiy mootae, tttBeneai taeoate, tuhfoa Rttements.
ananpleyiBor incoine, ioterest oa bank •eeouoti, acd dividcada from btab. Internal Reruue Serke Coilfled
To I^am for21)10 4e20ll ns tetuma.

Education

WHITE MOUNTAINS COMMUNtTY COU£CE
Aatedato Oegreet: Accitontmg 6t Buiincaa Adminlitratioct
CetiiBate Eaa^enuealttp
Belln,NH 03571)

PHI THETA KAPPA

White Unentaiai Comtmtaity CnO^
Pmidcst 2011-2012

MosBb Since 2010


